Military Housing, Political Influence & Real Estate Transactions

By Ray Metcalfe            Tel: 907-344-4514      Email: RayinAK@aol.com
An argument in support of the “Clean Elections Initiative”
View the following as a growing shared research document to which many have contributed.

Corrections are made and new information is added as it comes available.

Thus far the background information below has led or contributed to national stories on NBC, CNN; and on Anchorage television news KTUU, as well as articles in the Wall Street Journal, LA Times, 
and two articles in the Washington DC newspaper known as Roll Call.

Based on information received, here with a bit of speculation as to what it all may mean, I have set out a series of facts and dates and transactions involving the use, and what I believe to be the misuse of Federal funds, and political influence. It involves real estate transactions, U.S. Senator Ted Stevens, his son Ben Stevens, Anchorage (Alaska) Mayor Mark Begich, a few Assembly persons and group of local real estate developers who have contributed heavily to local, state and federal elections.  And those elected officials have found an astonishing number of ways to enrich their supportive real estate developers. In some cases, not only have these politicians showered their developer friends with favors, they have even made themselves business partners with them. The horrifically profitable transactions described below involved hundreds of millions of dollars and, in many cases required the widespread cooperation of local, state and federal officials: a cooperation involving a majority of those at the top of Alaska’s political dog-pile. A cooperation that could not have occurred without a majority vote of the Anchorage Assembly, both houses of Alaska’s Legislature, and the cooperation of all three members of our Congressional delegation.

Best described "Institutionalized Corruption," a practice accepted, condoned or tolerated by a majority of Alaska’s political leadership; the following demonstrates how politicians use your tax money and real estate to enrich developers, who in turn reward them with lucrative partnerships, consulting contracts, and campaign donations. Politicians who don’t play starve out early and seldom get to the top because their campaigns are under funded. Developers who refuse to “Pay to Play” are often bankrupted because they can’t compete with their subsidized competitors.

Alaskans live in a culture of corruption and fear. A culture where obvious corruption in the mainstream of politics is tolerated out of fear. For Business people it is fear of losing contracts with oil companies or the City if they speak out about the unfair practices they see. Many who support my efforts to expose corruption are afraid to be seen with me or help with my efforts to expose corruption. 
So you be the judge: Read the entirety of the outline below. It is just one “case in point example” of the how this state has been run since statehood. After your review, do your own research to support or dispel my statements of fact and/or speculation and belief. Your return report of any improvements or corrections would be appreciated.
When you’re done, share your opinion by letting others know if you think the following behavior meets ‘the smell test’ for the kind of government you want.

According to other agents familiar with the transaction, Mayor Mark Begich, a licensed real estate agent at the time, was at the very last minute abruptly pushed into the middle of a real estate transaction, and received a large real estate commission, from the land sale from Samantha Delay Wilson to Jon Rubini and friends. It appears to have been concurrent with his about face on the Base Housing tax exemption and his decision to help grease the wheels of the Planning Department on behalf of Jon Rubini for the rezoning of a property Begich had previously opposed. Begich’s assistance enabled Rubini to secure the building permits and the Federal earmark for the construction of the Parks Building, (the one next to the Anchorage FBI building,) and enabled Rubini to justify tripling the value of a property he owned ‑ just before the federal government purchased it using an earmark that U.S. Senator Ted Stevens had arranged. (Note: Ted Stevens and Mark Begich were both business partners with Jon Rubini at the time.) 

· In clarification Mark Begich has said he received some commission in cash at closing of Rubini’s acquisition of the land for the Federal Park Service building and an interest in two office buildings that Rubini owned in Anchorage, known as the Calais Towers. However, after review, we discovered that the interest in the Calais Towers was not received until four months later, possibly as a gift, and the real payoff didn’t come until much later, when Rubini purchased the interest he had given Begich back from him.   
Switching to the subject of another property, according to Alaska Senator Tom Wagoner, Begich helped with the Bill that Alaska State Senator Ben Stevens pushed through the Legislature, enabling the Anchorage Assembly to exempt Rubini from paying between three and five million dollars per year in Municipal taxes on the real property, which was given to him for a dollar per year by Ben’s father, U.S. Senator Ted Stevens. The property in question is the Elmendorf Military Housing located on the Elmendorf Military Reservation and within the Municipality of Anchorage. (When real property improvements are privately owned but located on land owned by the Federal Government, the improvements plus the value of the lease are taxable by the local government.)

The newly elected State of Alaska Representative Anna Fairclough, formerly Anchorage Assemblywoman Anna Fairclough, wrote the corresponding City ordinance that enabled Rubini to take advantage of the newly created State law, enabling Rubini's tax exemption. While on the Anchorage Assembly, Fairclough received several large contributions from Veco and Rubini. Fairclough received more Veco and Rubini contributions again later, when running for former Alaska Representative Pete Kott's seat in the Alaska Legislature. (Pete Kott was one of the legislators whose offices had been raided by the FBI. He has since been indicted for taking bribes from Veco – U.S. Alaska District Court, Case 3:07-cr-00056-JWS-JDR.)

Known facts on the timeline of cooperating efforts ‑ by Ted Stevens, Ben Stevens, Mark Begich, Jon Rubini and Leonard Hyde (his partner in JL Properties), and Ted Stevens’ Brother-in-law Bill Bittner ‑ to arrange cooperation between local, state and federal authorities to manipulate real property values in ways that resulted in the enrichment of each other:

The eight Anchorage real properties in question are:

1. Military Base Housing on Elmendorf (approximately 1,200 units) owned by Jon Rubini, Leonard Hyde, and Ted Stevens’ brother-in-law William ‘Bill’ Bittner. 

2. The newly constructed ‘Parks Building’ for the U.S. Dept. of Interior’s National Park Service, located at 240 W. 5th Ave in Anchorage, Alaska.

3. The 8 acres fronting on Denali Street: behind Lowe’s Hardware on Tudor Road.

4. The Arctic Slope Regional Corporation’s Flagship Headquarters Building owned by Jon Rubini and formerly owned by Rubini in partnership with Ted Stevens. (Ted Stevens bought in to the building project for $50,000 in 1997 and was bought out in 2004 for $1.038 million.)

5. The currently under construction future Flagship Headquarters Building of the Chugiak Native Regional Corporation, also owned by Jon Rubini, Ted Stevens’ business partner.

6. The Strip Mall on the southwest corner of 36th & C Street, owned by Ted Stevens’ business partners Jon Rubini and Leonard Hyde and Ted Stevens’ brother-in-law Bill Bittner. It’s the building that Flight Standards, a division of the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) was ordered to move into; yet the FAA was already occupying a property at the airport.  The FAA is subject to the oversight of the U.S. Senate’s Commerce Committee which Ted Stevens chaired.

7. The Calais Towers, owned by Rubini and formerly owned with Anchorage Mayor Mark Begich as a partner. Begich bought in for an unknown amount and was bought out for an unknown amount about two years later.

8. Two lots that the City of Anchorage, at the direction of Mayor Mark Begich, elected to lease from the parking area from Augustine Development, LLC. Lease payments of $29,000 per month, (about ten times what it is worth on the open market), from developers who are in other ventures partners of John Rubini, who is in partnerships with Mark Begich and Ted Stevens in yet other ventures.

· Note: Ted Stevens laid the groundwork for Alaska Native Corporations (ANCs) to receive billions of dollars from the Federal government in non-competitive bid contracts ‑ commonly known as sole source 8(a) contracts. Federal 8(a) contracts are small contracts available only to minority contractors. However, Senator Ted Stevens exempted Alaska Native Corporations from the upper limits of 8(a) contract that all other minority contractors have to abide by. Consequently, by joint venturing with an Alaska Native Corporation, companies like Halliburton or Bechtel can secure huge federal contracts without competitive bid. Hence the news about Alaska Native Corporations having multibillion dollar contracts to clean up New Orleans or provide services in Iraq. One Alaska Native Corporation benefiting from such contracts is now occupying a high rise office building owned by Ted Stevens’ business partner, Jon Rubini. The lease rate paid to Jon Rubini for the right to occupy the building Ted Stevens co-owned is the highest lease rate I know of currently being paid for similar space in Anchorage. Another building is now under construction, to be occupied under similar circumstances by another Alaska Native Corporation.

· In the case of the Arctic Slope Regional Corporation, Ted Stevens also arranged for the ASRC to own the known oil deposits in ANWR – the Arctic National Wildlife Refuge.  Senator Stevens helped arrange for that ownership to be exempt from a provision of the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act of 1971 (ANCSA) that requires all 13 native corporations to share 70% of their net profits from mineral production with the other native corporations, potentially dividing over $200 billion in resource wealth amongst about 20,000 shareholders of the Artic Slope Regional Corporation.  That’s about ten million dollars per person ‑ the bounty of a resource widely known as Alaska’s next Prudhoe Bay that most Alaskans have been misled to believe is a Public resource.

Timeline:  The events below demonstrate how the above eight properties
were used in an elaborate “you do this for me and I’ll do that for you, if
you will do that for my friend over there,” game of good old boys trading favors.

?/?/1997

Sometime during 1997, Ted Stevens invested $50,000 in a real estate development company owned by Jon Rubini and his partner Leonard Hyde. Seven years later, in 2004, Ted’s $50,000 investment would be bought out by Jon Rubini and/or Leonard Hyde for $1.038 million. Their buyout occurred the same year that Rubini and partners pocketed a $2.025 million profit flipping an 8 acre lot to the federal government for over twice what they had paid for it just one year earlier. Ted Stevens arranged for the federal appropriations that bought out Rubini’s interest and the federal government’s 8 acre buyout occurred almost simultaneous with Rubini’s buyout of Ted’s interest.  

03/31/1998

With Mark Begich sitting as Anchorage Assembly Chair and voting with the majority, Begich openly opposed a rezoning and repeatedly voted to postpone its consideration. Somehow he now claims insulation from culpability by saying he was off the Assembly when the Assembly voted to “postpone indefinitely” which is the method by which the Assembly denied the former owners their rezone request. Mark Begich latter supported the rezone request but not until after his business partner Jon Rubini owned that property and Ted Stevens had earmarked money ‑ to purchase the property for over two times what Rubini had paid for it one year earlier. Today he runs for cover by saying he supported the park owners who changed their minds after Rubini bribed them with the promise of $400,000 of the profits he would get from the federal government if they would just go along. (Begich doesn’t seem to be able to hear the neighbors next door to the Wal-Mart proposal in Muldoon. Title 21 is fraught with smoke and mirrors and a thousand and one ways to arrange for plausible deniability as politicians and bureaucrats apply the law one way for a “Good Old Boy” and completely different for some one who is not. The non-related applicants who were denied rezoning consisted of a group of about 70 mostly retired school teachers, known as the 40th Street Investors. They had purchased the property as an investment.

Begich offered the following in explanation of his initial opposition:


First Public Hearing March 31, 1998 AO-98-48 Rezone  (Planning Director at that time was Sheila Selkregg-she felt the plan of rezoning was inadequate, Also P/Z recommendation was against the re-zone, Spenard Community Council was against it)49 people testified, Almost all against it, the Assembly postponed action until July 21, 1998.

Second Public Hearing July 21, 1998, ( MARK BEGICH No longer on the Assembly-term limited out).

Third Public Hearing, August 25, 1998, No action by Assembly. Postponed until December 8, 1998.

Fourth Public Hearing, December 8, 1998
12 more people testified  Assembly Postpones until January 26, 1999.

Fifth Public Hearing, January 26, 1999, Assembly takes no action Postponed until March 23, 1999.

Sixth Public Hearing, March 23, 1999,  Assembly Postpones Indefinitely (Mark Begich still not Assembly).

3/25/99 
The Anchorage press features an article about the property the National Archives would later buy from Rubini (in 2004) for over twice what he paid for it in 2003, when he purchased it from a group of retired teachers who owned it at the time the press article written here was written. Mayor Rick Mystrom at the time had a vision of “40th Avenue as a 2-lane meandering street cutting through a D.C.-styled quadrangle, with the post office and library to the north and other federal buildings to the south.” Mystrom also said he was working with Sen. Ted Stevens in Washington to secure money to acquire the land. The above referenced press article is relevant because it demonstrates that Ted Stevens was aware of the availability of the property, and anticipated its use for a federal building of some kind, long before his business partner owned it and long before he made over six million dollars available for it’s purchase.

2001, ’02, ’03
George Weurch, Mayor of Anchorage 2001-02; Mark Begich elected in 2003. Municipal Board of Equalization (BOE) began questioning the Anchorage property tax appraisal department’s valuations of private Leasehold interests on public properties, (airports, port, Railroad property, privately owned housing located on land leased from the military, etc.) known as “Possessory Interest”. The Cities valuation methods had resulted in extremely low valuations. BOE was also preparing to look into concerns about other numerous tax exemptions that several board members had suggested may be unwarranted.

2002
With help of the Assembly, BOE caused the MOA (Municipality of Anchorage) auditor to audit exempt tax rolls.  The audit validated BOE’s concerns, stating that numerous exemptions were not justified or documented, and BOE recommended immediate action.

2002 
Board of Equalization (BOE) repeatedly requested information on valuation of new base housing. No response from the MOA.

05/21/2002
According to Leonard Hyde of JL Properties, JL Properties entered into agreement with 40th Street Investors to purchase their 8 acre site. Later, transfers interest to Eagle River Center LLC.

06/19/02
Rubini formed a limited liability shell company that appears to never have been used for any purpose other than to acquire, hold and resell 8 acres as the future sight of the National Archives.  The company formed on June 19, 2002 was the Eagle River Center LLC.  It was formed 22 days before Ted Stevens had gotten the Senate subcommittee of the full Appropriations Committee to make its first recommendation for the appropriation that would eventually purchase those 8 acres from his business partner Jon Rubini. (So, Stevens’ proposed federal appropriation was to purchase property from Rubini that Rubini did not even own yet.) 

07/11/02
The FIRST mention of the recommendation to appropriate funds to purchase the land that Rubini had not yet purchased very likely came in the original bill reported from the Appropriations subcommittee in their report to the full committee. The subcommittee markup was held on July 11, 2002, and was approved by a voice vote. (In review: Rubini purchased the property eleven months after the first proposal for the appropriation. The appropriation proposed was $3.75 million for NARA to purchase property for a new facility in Anchorage. That federal appropriation was used to buy the property from Rubini 23 months after the appropriation was first proposed, which was also one year and six days following Rubini’s purchase.  Just enough time to avoid short term gain taxes.) Why didn’t the federal government simply advise the 40th Street Investors of their interest in the property and agree to purchase the property, subject to finalization of appropriation, for $1.55 million from the retired teachers that owned it at the time? I think I know why, do you?

7/11/2002, 
It was just six weeks after Rubini tied up the 8 acre property that the Senate Appropriations Subcommittee on Treasury and General Government passed by voice vote a fiscal 2003 spending measure that included a $3.75 million earmark for NARA to purchase property for a new facility in Anchorage.

8/12/02
To satisfy an appropriation earmark arranged by Ted Stevens, Jon Rubini and Leonard Hyde close on purchase property at 240 W. 5th Ave on which they plan to build the National Park Service Building. Begich received a large real estate commission from the transaction. Rubini recorded a $2,000,000 dead of trust against the property at closing.

· The $2,000,000 figure is probably the purchase price.

· Begich and Rubini both said the commission was less but neither were willing to disclose the amount until much public pressure was brought. Begich has since shed some light but his explanation has been about as clear as mud.

According to real estate agents and others familiar with the transaction, Mark Begich had little or no involvement in the transaction, and Rubini’s bid was lowered by removing the requirement to provide parking.  Rubini was allowed to meet the parking requirements by entering into a long term lease to lease parking spaces from a city owned parking garage next door – a garage which belongs to the Municipality of Anchorage and was paid for with tax free municipal bonds.  To the best of my knowledge, the other bidders were not afforded the same opportunity to eliminate parking from their bids One of those bidders is named John Schwam. His phone numbers are 907-276-2284 and 480-488-9510. A review the assembly record reveals that it was Assemblypersons Anna Fairclough and Dick Traini who sponsored the ordinance authorizing Rubini to use the parking. The same two who led the charge to give Rubini a tax break on his base housing also tried to get tax exemptions for Rubini’s Parks Building. The Parks Building was to be a privately owned “build to suit” on a long term lease. Tax free municipal bonds are, by law, not allowed to be used as a means of supplying dedicated parking for a private investor.

11/14/2002
Rubini transfers ownership of property for Parks Building to 5th Avenue Development LLC on November 14, 2002.

12/9/2003 
Accuval-Resco Appraisal (a Seattle co.) issues an appraisal, appraising the site destined for the National Archives at $2,900,000. 

12/31/2003 
A second appraisal is issued by Black-Smith & Richards, Inc., appraising the property at $1,955,000 as is, however the majority of the appraisal was in defense of a non existent “hypothetical” value of $4,497,000, based on the prospect that the property might be rezoned from R-3, (high density residential,) to B-3SL, Anchorage’s highest density business zoning classification, (general business with “special limitations”).

Analogous to an alchemist painting a lead brick with gold paint and selling it to an unwary buyer on the prospect it may turn to gold before the unwary buyer notices the deceit beneath the veneer, my suspicion is that the second appraisal was ordered and paid for by Rubini when the first appraisal ordered by the Federal Government failed to stack up to his desires.

If correct, Rubini’s appraiser went to great lengths to distance himself from the conclusions of his own appraisal. (Wanting to keep his appraiser’s license may have had something to do with that.)

In an appraisal dated December 31, 2003, apparently written by George M. Mies and delivered under the cover letter of Diane Black-Smith of Black-Smith and Richards Appraisal Company, the appraisal bares all the markings of an appraisal done by a subordinate shoved into a corner to do something he really didn’t want to do by a boss who, in responding to pressure from a high volume client to produce an MAI appraisal, packed with attempts to legitimize a non-existent value, the appraiser included the following language on a page containing no information to the contrary, that could be easily clipped for inclusion in a summary intended to mislead, and from the content of a historical summary of events, published by the National Archives and Records Administration, that appears to be exactly what has happened.

Language reading as follows can be found on page 52 of Black-Smith’s appraisal:

· The subject consists of an B-3SL zoned parcel containing an area of 391,034 square feet (8.977 acres), located at the southwest corner of Denali Street and East 40th Avenue. The property has paved access; all public utilities are available and has average to marginal soils. The parcel could be developed with any legal use permitted under the B-3SL zoning classification and not otherwise restricted. 

The language is consistent with several comments throughout the appraisal that characterize B-3SL zoning and value as an existing fact or a certainty of things to come. 

The appraiser then insulates himself from the culpability one might gather from his assertions of certainty by using the term “Extraordinary assumption” 11 times to qualify his conflicting suggestions of an existing value of $4,497,000 as an absurdity.

As a commercial real estate broker for 33 years who has read hundreds of commercial appraisals, it is my opinion that Black-Smith’s appraisal was designed to endorse a non-existent value, while avoiding culpability in a fraud by quietly mentioning the real value of appraisal of $1,955,000 and loudly defending a nonexistent value of $4,497,000.

While “as is appraisals,” accompanied by an “as proposed appraisals” are commonplace and necessary when perusing bank loans for remodels or construction projects; the concept being that to secure a loan, one must demonstrate that the land and/or property acquisition costs, plus the costs of the proposed improvements must be less than the sales value after completion. In 33 years, I have never seen an appraisal hypothesized in the way that Black-Smith and Richards did in this instance.

After formulating and defending an extensive argument to hypothesize a non-existent value, and expressing it many times as though it was an existing circumstance of fact, Appraiser George Miles, in my opinion, attempts to make such assertions while simultaneously distancing himself from the claim, by inserting a letter in the appraisal that reads as follows:

From:
“George Mies’ <bsr@ ak.net>
To:
<mike.wochna@gsa.gov>
Sent:
Friday, December  19, 2003 12:02 PM Subject: NARA Sites in Anchorage

12-19-03

Tract B, Cook

There are several potential appraisal problems involving this property. Each of the following scenarios represents a different question requiring a different approach.

The “as-is” value of the subject (whole property)

In this scenario, the property is appraised according to its current R-3 zoning. The probability of a rezone can be given no weight based on the historic facts:

· A lengthy market exposure period;

· Previous attempts to rezone the property;

· The apparent current position of Municipality of Anchorage (MOA);

· The purchase price by the developer – the recent price paid by developer recognizes the previous history and the probability of a rezone.

The “as-is” value of the subject (whole property) according to the hypothetical condition[1] that property has been rezoned to B-3SL as proposed.

In this scenario, the whole property is appraised (in it’s as-is condition) as a general commercial site as of the date of inspection/valuation.

Presumably, GSA needs a value estimate of the site they will occupy rather than an estimate of the larger parcel “as-is”.

The “prospective” value of a select site to be created from the larger parcel according to the extraordinary assumption(2] that the B-3SL rezone and replat will be permitted as proposed

In this scenario, the as-is condition (size, shape, zoning, etc.) is of no consequence. The site to be developed/occupied for NARA, is appraised as of a specific future date. This scenario describes that site as proposed in terms of the net area and any platting requirements imposed by MOA. These could include improvements and/or modifications to the infrastructure (e.g. the extensions of roads and utility lines, street lighting).

If this is the case – there are two sub-scenarios:

· The “prospective” value of the selected site, re-platted as proposed with all of the off-site requirements completed the native soils are still on site. In this scenario, the soils are inadequate.

· The ‘’prospective value of the selected site, re-platted as proposed with all of the off-site requirements completed – and build ready – in other words, the peat is removed and the site is prepared for construction. In this scenario, the soils are good.

A prospective date of value allows for current values to be trended forward to a future date of completion. The date of valuation is a future date. This can be limited if the instruction is to estimate the value as proposed according to the hypothetical condition that the site is rezoned, re-platted, and developed as described – as of the date of inspection. The date of valuation is the date of inspection.

Summary:

One of the following needs to be incorporated into the appraisal instructions.

· The "as-is" value of the subject, (whole property) zoned R-3.

· The "as-is- value (whole property) according to the hypothetical condition that the subject is zoned B3SL.

· The "prospective' value of a select site to be created from the larger parcel according to the extraordinary assumption (31 that the B-381, rezone and replat will be permitted as proposed.

· The "prospective" market value of the selected site as of a future date, re-platted as proposed with according to the extraordinary assumption1.41 that the B-3SL rezone and replat will be permitted as proposed and all of the off-site requirements are completed – the native soils are in place.

[end of clipping from letter in appraisal by G. Mies]

Comment on Letter:

The above letter reaffirms that the property is appraised according to its current R-3 zoning. In other words, the value at the time of the appraisal and at the time of NARA’s review and at the time of NARA’s purchase of the property, the value of the property was $1,955,000. The appraiser also makes clear that reliance on the probability of a rezone has no basis in determining value.

By quietly mentioning the real appraisal value of $1,955,000, while loudly defending a nonexistent value of $4,497,000, the appraiser attempts a shell game with the value, and what the appraisal really says the value is. He has used the term “Extraordinary Assumption” 11 times, thereby clouding culpability in the anticipatable fraudulent use of his appraisal.

The ‘Shell Game’ Worked:

Someone at the GSA either knowingly adopted the fantasy value as fact, with the belief that plausible deniability of “misread the appraisal” had been established, or someone at GSA was successfully duped into unknowingly passing to his or her superiors that the property was zoned B-3SL and had been appraised “as is” at $4,497,000.


The following is a clip from the historical “Executive Summary of Events,” prepared and distributed by staff at the National Archives:
· In January 2004, the site selection recommendation report was provided from the site selection committee to NARA for approval. The site recommended for purchase was the site at 40th Avenue and Denali Street.

· The original offer from Eagle River Center, LLC was for a purchase price of $4,880,000 ($14/SF). GSA had obtained the two appraisals — one for $2,900,000 and the second for $4,497,000. On January 21, 2004, GSA and NARA met with the offeror and GSA presented a purchase contract in the amount of $2,900,000. This was not accepted by the offeror.
· (The above stated conclusion by NARA staff is false: the appraised value on January 21, 2004 was $1,955,000. In NARA’s pre-selection “Side By Side Comparison of Sites;” the comparison information prepared and presented to decision makers prior to the January 21, 2004 initiation of offers, NARA staff falsely described the property as having “No rezoning issues. Current zoning B-3”)
· On March 1, 2004, the offeror submitted a counter offer in the amount of $3,525,000. This purchase price was accepted by GSA/NARA. Closing on the purchase of the property occurred on June 7, 2004.

End of clip from GSA “Executive Summary of Events,” above.
W. Michael Wochana, GSA's appraisal reviewer made the following comment: The appraisers present two separate values, one for the property with its current multi-residential zoning ($1.955.000) and one for the property with the applied-for commercial zoning ($4,497,000). They do not attempt to estimate the probability of the zoning change being granted. I have some personal misgivings about the location of some of the comparables used and the applicability of a 1% per month time adjustment, especially as applied to the commercial/industrial sales, However. based on the information provided within the appraisal report and given the scope of the work applicable in the assignment. it is my opinion that the analyses, opinions and conclusions are reasonable and appropriate.
· The appraisal reviewer makes note of two values. One based in reality; the reality of the zoning as it existed at the time of the appraisal and one based in fantasy. The fantasy of a nonexistent business zoning.
· The property was zoned residential at the time of the appraisal and remains zoned residential today and therefore the property remains valued at $1,955,000, not the $3,550,000 the government paid Rubini and Hyde for the property.
· There exists a perception that the property was rezoned after the sale was closed, but that is not correct. The ordinance passed by the Municipal, Assembly which discusses the rezone of the property has never actually become law. 
· A few questions directed to appraisal reviewer W. Michael Wochana, would also seem appropriate. Beginning with “did he know the deal closed before the attempt at rezoning occurred and how many of GSA’s buying guidelines were broken when they paid dramatically more than appraisal based on a hypothetical value that did not exist at the time of closing”

12/2002
According to a letter Begich, at the suggestion of APOC, sent to the City Clerk in June of 2007, explaining his failure to report his receipt of partial ownership in the Calais I and Calais II buildings he received from Jon Rubini and Leonard Hyde in 2002 on his APOC financial disclosures for 2002 and 2003.

Mr. Begich claims that it was just an oversight.  It seems unlikely he would forget about receiving the real estate in December 2002 on the disclosure he wrote in either January or February of 2003, possibly as little as two weeks later.

When this subject of this questionable real estate partnership came to light, Mr. Begich claimed that he earned this real estate as part of a commission he was paid for his work on a separate transaction involving land Rubini and Hyde purchased for the construction of the National Parks Building. Mr. Hyde, Rubini’s partner said at the same time that they “gave” the property to Mark Begich, with hopes that having him as an investor would increase the tenancy at the property.  Mr. Begich, in his letter to the clerk, calls his receiving of the property an investment. Was it a commission, a gift, or an investment?

If Begich was “given” the property as part of his commission on a real estate transaction which occurred August twelfth of 2002, why was he not paid until four months later, in December 2002?  That’s not the way things work in real estate, and something seems to be wrong with this story. If the property interest was in fact “given” as Rubini and/or Hyde had said as the Daily News reported August 4, 2007, it certainly wasn’t an investment, and if so, it should have been reported as a gift.

In Begich’s 2007 financial disclosure to APOC, he claimed to own 1.153% of the Calais I Office Center LLC and 1.5408% of Calais II Office Center LLC (The property interest he received from Rubini and Hyde.). The assessed value of Begich’s gift or investment, whichever it was,    escalated by about 23% during his term of ownership. How then did the value of his gift or investment more than double from $25,000 to $52,000 during that same period of time? Did that have anything to do with a “Mayor Favor” similar to the “Senator Favors” Rubini and Hyde received from Ted Stevens just prior to their buying Ted out of a different building for about ten times what he had paid?

01/03 
Mark Begich announced his plan to run for mayor of Anchorage.

03/17/2003
First Alaska Senate hearing on SB 136, the Bill introduced by Senator Tom Wagoner that was later amended by Ben Stevens to exempt Jon Rubini’s base housing (the military housing that Ted gave him) from the State Statute requiring it to be assessed at its realistic value and to be taxed at the same mil rate (dollars per thousand of assessed value) as for the properties of all other city property owners.

Anyone who buys into Begich’s argument that it was questionable whether or not the city had the right to tax real property improvements owned privately by Rubini, but located on lease land on a military reservation, need read no further than section 5 of article 9 of Alaska’s constitution. It reads: 

· Article 9 - Finance and Taxation § 5. Interests in Government Property Private leaseholds, contracts, or interests in land or property owned or held by the United States, the State, or its political subdivisions, shall be taxable to the extent of the interests.
04/01/03
Mark Begich is elected mayor of Anchorage. Swearing-in ceremony to occur in June.

04/02/03
Second Alaska Senate hearing on the Bill eventually used to exempt Jon Rubini’s property from being assessed and taxed like other people’s property.

04/10/03
The third Alaska Senate hearing on the Bill to exempt Jon Rubini’s property from being assessed and taxed like other people’s property.

?/03
At some time during 2003, Mark Begich acquired a 1.5% interest in Jon Rubini’s Calais Office Towers for an unknown amount, and does not report his ownership to the political watchdogs, as and when required by law, until two years later.

05/05/2003
According to Leonard Hyde, Eagle River Center LLC submitted its 8 acre site that they had not yet finished purchasing, to NARA (National Archives and Records Administration) as part of site selection process for new archives facility. 

06/02/03
Rubini (an owner of JL Properties) purchased the 8 acres in mid town near the Anchorage Municipal Library, which is zoned for residential use. The company he used to buy that property is named EAGLE RIVER CENTER LLC. Rubini immediately made application to the Anchorage Planning Commission to rezone the property as General Business, a zoning designation that would nearly triple the appraisal value of the eight acres. See record of deed below. Hyde said he purchased it 5/21/02. Not true, see deed below. 5/21/02 may have been when they entered into an agreement purchase. Hyde said they submitted it to NARA 5/5/03. That would have been one month before they actually owned it.

Record of Deed #1:

	Document Year: 2003 Number: 052977 Suf: 0    
	District: 301 - ANCHORAGE 

	Date Recorded: 06/02/2003 Time: 11:55AM     Pages: 6     

	Index: D -  DEEDS 
	  

	Desc: WARRANTY DEED 

	Grantor - 40TH STREET INVESTORS

	Grantee - EAGLE RIVER CENTER LLC

	Location:  Tract: B     
	Plat: 82-57   


· Note: Rubini intended to sell the property to the US government. The US government does as it pleases with the property it owns, with no deference to local zoning laws. The only reason for rezoning was to justify the increase of its appraisal. The people Rubini purchased the property from had attempted to rezone the property for business development in 1998. Their application was denied.

· Mark Begich was the chairman of the Anchorage Assembly at the time and instrumental in orchestrating the denial of that first rezone request. But Ted Stevens had initiated the appropriation for the Federal Government to purchase the property from his partner Rubini before Rubini purchased the property. As soon as Rubini acquired the property, Mayor Begich, also partners with Rubini at that time, reversed his position concerning the zoning of the property, issuing a letter on the letterhead of the Mayor’s office urging the Planning Commission’s support for Rubini’s rezone request. 

Note: At the time of the first rezone request, local government had expressed in interest in buying it to be used as a park. One of the arguments made for denying the rezone at the time was that rezoning would increase the price local government would have to pay for the property.

06/24/2003
Begich sworn as Mayor in on June 24th 2003.

· On or about this time, Mark Begich announced his support for exempting Rubini’s military housing from taxation and State of Alaska Representative Mike Chenault, the suspected founder of the ‘Corrupt Bastards Club’, introduced a companion Bill in the House of Representatives, to do the same thing. (The information concerning Mayor Begich’s support came from the Bill’s prime sponsor, State Senator Tom Wagoner. Senator Ben Stevens added the Rubini exemption language to Senator Wagoner’s Bill and pushed it through.) (Begich’s support was conditional on the payment of some token amount in lieu of taxes. When the negotiations were finished, it was token indeed.) 

06/24/03
Shortly after his election, Begich also pushed an ordinance eliminating the Board of Equalization (BOE), thereby eliminating further oversight or opposition to such tax exemptions from within the city government.
10/03
The State of Alaska’s Assessor threatened MOA (Mayor Begich) with declaration of “major error” in regard to low valuations of possessory interest and a penalty of $400,000. To explain the penalty, the State of Alaska abides by strict formulas for revenue sharing that subsidizes local taxation in payment for local education funding needs. If a community fails to tax local taxpayers in an equitable way, requiring all tax payers to pay their fair share for education, the state will not make up the difference. Alternatively, the state penalizes negligent communities by holding back funds, as necessary to prompt community leaders to require ALL of their citizens to pay their fair share.

12/17/03
Members of the city's Board of Equalization, which hears challenges to tax assessments, resign one day after the Anchorage Assembly approved an ordinance that restructured the board and redefined their authority. Andree Swales, clerk for the board, said she received notice Wednesday that the entire board -- seven members and 12 alternate members -- was resigning, effective immediately. According to former BOE chair, this mass resignation was largely in response to the Mayor’s treatment of the Base Housing issue.

1/15/04
New property assessment valuations are mailed out except for possessory interest properties, including base housing. Assessor stated that Mayor Begich was involved in the valuation decision for base housing.

01/21/2004
According to Leonard Hyde, NARA informs Eagle River Center LLC. that its 8 acre site has been selected.

’03 & ’04
Begich has, in violation of disclosure requirements, failed to disclose his ownership interest in the Calais Office Towers, an ownership he shares with Jon Rubini, owner of JL Properties. (Not disclosed until 02/05)
02/02/04
Begich sent a letter to his Director of Planning to approve Rubini’s application to rezone the 8 acres and in that letter acknowledged that he was aware that the Federal government was preparing to purchase the property. Mayor Begich is a knowledgeable developer and fully aware that the only reason to rezone the property is to enable the business partner (that he shared with US Senator Ted Stevens) to obtain a higher appraisal and thereby gain justification to secure a higher purchase price from the Federal Government. The statements of the Planning Commission also make clear that they were aware of the fact that the Federal Government had no reason to desire a rezone and that the only effect that a rezone might have would be to cause the Federal Government to pay ‑ or in this case would justify having paid ‑ a higher price than the property could have commanded as previously zoned.

02/09/04
The Planning Commission reversed its prior refusal to rezone the property for the former owner stating that “this owner is much more likely to bring quality development to the area.” It’s a classic case of WRONG OWNER: as the prior owner hadn’t been admitted to the good-old-boy-club and had not “paid-to-play.”

02/09/2004
According to Leonard Hyde, planning and zoning commission approved the rezone of the 8 acre site. Not true. See the mayor’s letter and planning letter.

02/23/2004
According to Leonard Hyde, GSA sent letter justifying value and supplied GSA purchase and sale agreement template to Eagle River Center LLC.

03/02/2004
Mayor Begich pushed a new ordinance through the Municipal Assembly (OA. NO. 2004-45) waving Rubini’s obligation to comply with several provisions of Title 7 “PURCHASING AND CONTRACTS AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES” of the Anchorage Municipal Code. (Note: I have been in the commercial real estate business in Anchorage for over thirty years. Excepting the two additional and later occurrences of Begich’s intervention on behalf of Rubini, I know of no other occurrence where the laws have been waved to accommodate a real estate developer.)

· Note: I have no doubt that the above ordinance will be defended with the argument that it was passed to facilitate and expedite the construction of a facility needed for the betterment of the future Anchorage. In response, I would argue that the New Seward Highway and all of its overpasses were also needed to for the betterment of the Anchorage’s future. However I doubt anyone could make a defensible argument for the waver of the safety and quality controls for its construction. If such a practice is not brought to a halt, future contractor friends of future mayors will enjoy a competitive edge over all “non contributors” in that they will be able to secure an after bid reduction in building costs that their competitors could not rely on in the preparation of their bids.

4/04
Valuation of $40 million placed on base housing even though just the construction loan for approximately 412 units had been reported to be $110 million, the land on which they were built was delivered for, and there were several hundred existing units also delivered for free. (Clearly, that’s several hundred million dollars worth of real estate.)

· (JL Properties, Ted Stevens' brother-in-law et al, a six percent owner of the base housing) complained and appealed the Assessor's decision to tax them based upon a value of $40 million and soon thereafter, on 04/27/2004, came the fourth Alaska Senate hearing on the bill that would exempt Jon Rubini’s property from being assessed and taxed like other people’s property; and I suspect this was the hearing during which Rubini’s exemptions were added to the bill.

5/04
Larry Norene and David McCabe, former BOE chairmen, met with Assessor after public information request. Assessor had attorney present, provided no written information, but disclosed that JL Properties refused to provide any information and threatened to get property exempted at State Level. Assessor later reported that JL Properties had obtained exemption through legislation pushed through the Alaska Legislature by Ben Stevens. However, a payment in lieu of property taxes would have to be negotiated with the Municipality of Anchorage.

05/05/04
Alaska State Senate Bill 136, the bill to exempt Jon Rubini’s property from being assessed and taxed like other people’s property, received final passage from the Legislature. The final version of the Bill required Rubini to work out an agreement to pay something in lieu of taxes, which will require an agreement and a Municipal Ordinance agreeing to the amount of the payment in lieu.

06/08/04
Rubini sells his not yet rezoned 8 acres to the Federal Government and collects $3,525,000, after holding the property for only one year and six days. Precisely six days longer than required to avoid the short term capital gains tax. See deed below.

Record of Deed #2:
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	Grantor - EAGLE RIVER CENTER LLC

	Grantee - UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
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	Plat: 82-57   


7/06/2004
Meeting of the Anchorage Assembly – Tim Potter of Dowl Engineers had addressed the community councils and the Planning and Zoning Commission prior to meeting with the Assembly. At those meetings, Potter explained that the National Archives had acquired the property as R-3, with the anticipation that it might be rezoned to B-3. 

My suspicion is that Potter’s remarks were an attempt to justify ‑ after the fact ‑ an appraisal that may have been fraudulently done and presented to the Federal Government based on a zoning that had not yet been approved. When the resolution to rezone land was approved July 06, 2004, the sale to the Federal Government had already been completed four weeks earlier. 

· Note: Convicted lobbyist Bill Bobrick, a close friend of Mayor Begich, very likely represented JL Properties in these matters as well.  Bobrick was on retainer by JL Properties at the time.
The executive summary is dated by the highlighted comment on page three of the GAO’s Side By Side Comparison Chart. It states “With no current appraisal information, offered price appears acceptable.” The comment demonstrates that portion of the executive summary titled “Side By Side Comparison” was prepared prior to the receipt of either of the two appraisals. By combining the above quoted comment with the information also highlighted on page one of the Side By Side Comparison, which reads “” that section which refers to the property as being zoned B-3, (Anchorage’s highest density and most valuable form of commercial business zoning,) it becomes clear that, at least the person who prepared the Side By Side Comparison portion of the executive summary for the consideration of the executives at the Real Estate Services Branch of the GSA, had been led to believe that the property was zoned business or preparer lied.

It is also made clear by the highlighted text on the last page of the five page narrative titled Anchorage Regional Archives and Records Center – Background on Sight Purchase, that after the preparer of the executive summary had received and reviewed the appraisals, the preparer of that portion of the executive summary and he/she either continued to believe that the property was zoned B-3, or he/she lied to his/her superiors. He/she also believed or lied to the effect that the property had been appraised at $4,497,000, and was valued at that amount at the time of closing. 

At the time of closing, it was not zoned B-3, and it was not appraised at $4,497,000.  Either the Seller misled the preparer about the zoning and the value of the property or the preparer of the executive summary intentionally lied. In either case, the Seller could not have not known that the GSA believed the property to be something it was not, and that the GSA was basing their agreed purchase price on false information. It is clear that criminal fraud and deceptive real estate practices were involved and several people participating in the process had to be aware of it.

There exists the misimpression by some that the fraud outlined above may have been mitigated by the passage of Anchorage Ordinance 2004-90, which passed the Municipal Assembly one month after the sale from Rubini and Hyde had closed under false and fraudulent pretences. However no such mitigation exists.  Ordinance 2004-90 did not rezone the property as some people thought. The ordinance has never taken effect. The property remains zoned residential today. 

The ordinance has an effective date requiring that the ordinance not take effect until the Municipal Planning Department approves a plan for the construction of a building of not less than 30,000 square feet, within five years of the passage of the ordinance. (On or before June 6, 2009, see section 4 of attached ordinance.) No such building has been approved and no budget for its construction has been appropriated by the federal government. Not for FY 2007 or for FY 2008. (See Anchorage Regional Archives and Records Center – Background on Sight Purchase). Regardless of whether the doubtful deadline is met, it is a fact that the federal government has, for the past three and a half years, owned a piece of real property zoned residential, which is appraised and is resalable for approximately $1,955,000. The federal government was sold the property under the false pretence that Black Smith and Richards had appraised the property for $2,542,000 more than they actually had. 

Leonard Hyde held a real estate license, and dealt in commercial real estate for many years. John Rubini is a practicing attorney, member of the Alaska Bar, and well versed in real estate law. They are both well aware of their legal obligation to be truthful and forthcoming in the sale of their properties. Their partner in other properties, Mayor Begich assisted them in their attempt to secure a rezoning after the deed had been done. The Mayor and all Assembly members present were aware that the property had closed at a B-3 sales price when no such zoning was attributable to the property. 

Tim Potter of Dowl Engineers had explained that the National Archives had acquired the property as R-3, with the anticipation that it might be rezoned to B-3. That explanation was false. Tim potter knew it was false, and Mayor Begich knew or should have known it was false.
Mayor Begich was present for Tim Potter’s testimony and acknowledged in the meeting that his administration had been working closely with Rubini and the federal government. Mayor Begich was well aware that the transaction had closed. Mayor Begich is a real estate professional and most certainly should have known that the federal government almost never pays more than appraisal for a real property and certainly knew that the hoops the federal government requires their agencies to jump through if they do pay more than appraisal had not been jumped through. It is highly probable that Mayor Begich was fully aware that his business partner John Rubini had closed the transaction at a price that could only have been justified by a fraudulent claim of business zoning. A zoning that did not exist at the time of closing nor does it exist today.

At the very least Mayor Begich had an obligation to call a red flag on the field and get to the bottom of things. He did not. Instead, it appears he aided and abetted John Rubini in perpetrating a fraudulent transaction.

7/04
Two months before the Governor had signed the bill to exempt Jon Rubini’s property from taxes, Mayor Begich sent the Assembly a memorandum regarding the payment in lieu, suggesting the settlement was based on ½ of the ’02 and ’03 tax bills. Begich did not explain what the actual valuations and tax bills would have been if its assessment were calculated the same as all other possessory interest properties. The “settlement,” (pushed through by Assemblywoman Anna Fairclough who now sits in the State Legislature) was for a reported $140,000, when a tax bill could have been approx. $3.5 million, increasing to above $5 million per year with project completion.

· Note: Ray Metcalfe advised Anna Fairclough that he would likely sue the State and the Municipality of Anchorage if her proposed agreement were passed. Unfortunately Anna had seen a rich source of contributions addressing the Assembly from the far side of the podium in the Assembly chambers, and she nearly set a world’s record for speed and distance as she leaped from her lofty perch in front of the Assembly and into the pocket of Jon Rubini. (See her reported list of contributors employed by JL Properties for confirmation.) Anchorage Assembly Chairman Dick Traini (AKA Tax Break Traini) came in a close second in his attempt to provide tax exemptions for Rubini’s building now occupied by the Federal Park Service.

707/04/2004 
     Anchorage Daily News, Author: LIZ RUSKIN Anchorage Daily News Staff:

· …U.S. Sen. Ted Stevens recently slipped $2.5 million into the annual military spending bill to buy 160 acres on the North Slope that belong to Jacob Adams , the president of the powerful Arctic Slope Regional Corp., and two of his siblings. A paragraph Stevens wrote into the Defense Department appropriation bill in June said the Air Force will pay the Adams family in exchange for the land and "in consideration of its unauthorized use and contamination." 

· The $2.5 million cost comes to more than $15,000 per acre. That's a stunning amount, said Brad Meiklejohn, who has negotiated the purchase of dozens of remote parcels across the state as the Alaska representative of The Conservation Fund. "That's several orders of magnitude beyond what the normal price of an allotment up there would be," Meiklejohn said. 

· The land borders the Beaufort Sea at Oliktok Point, 30 miles northeast of the village of Nuiqsut. It is next to a military radar station built in the 1950s as part of the Distant Early Warning line. 

Jacob Adams, helped make Ted Stevens a millionaire, when he directed Arctic Slope Regional Corporation to have Ted’s business partners, John Rubini and Leonard Hyde, build a building for Arctic Slope Regional Corporation to occupy and pay rent at $6 million per year for the next twenty years. Ted was "a $50 thousand dollar investor in the building." and as soon as publicity began to hurt, Rubini and Hyde bought Ted out for one million more than Ted had paid. (Probably with the money they got from the archives deal.) Please keep in mind that the process of getting an appropriation through Congress usually begins a year or two before the public hears about it. In this case, probably about the same time the deal was cut for Ted’s to build a building for Artic Slope Regional Corp to rent. 
09/07/04
SB136, the bill to exempt Jon Rubini’s property from being assessed and taxed like other people’s property is signed into law, chapter 140, SLA 04.
· Note: In hindsight it would appear that extreme measures were taken (1) to protect base housing from proper valuation, (2) obtain special interest legislation to exempt them all together, and (3) hide the relations involved. Ben Stevens obtained the exemptions for his father’s partners and his stepmother’s brother (Bittner) without disclosure. Mark Begich negotiated the ordinances with the assistance of Anna Fairclough and hindered proper assessment prior to the passage of the statute and agreement to taxes in lieu. The legislation is very likely a violation of Alaska’s Constitution which prohibits “Special Legislation” passed for the benefit of one person.

2004
Sometime in 2004, the U.S. Minerals Management Service, moved their regional office from VECO’s building at 949 E. 36th Ave, into the property Ted Stevens invested in with Jon Rubini, at 3801 Centerpoint. Minerals Management Service now occupies the fifth floor at that location. John Goll, was the regional director at the time. the phone number to the regional director's office is 907-334-5200.

· Just a reminder, Flight Standards was moved from the airport, into the strip mall next door. Rubini bought the strip mall from the same owner he bought the property he built Centerpoint. Rubini now owns the strip mall with Ted's brother-in-law Bill Bittner. 

2004
Sometime during 2004 Mark Begich is bought out (probably by Jon Rubini) of his 1.5% interest in the Calais Office Towers for an unknown amount. As you ponder what it may have been, remember that Ted Stevens bought into Rubini’s property for $50,000 in 1997 and was bought out in 2004 for $1.038 million.

Estimated Giveaways:
A guess of what they gave away to partners in just the military housing: based on what 
  little I have been able to glean from information those involved don’t want me to have:

1.  Four hundred and ten (410) built 1400 square foot units with two car garages valued
       at $200,000 each = $82,000,000.
2.  Eight hundred and fifty (828) older units averaging 1200 sq. ft. each, some with one car
       garages, at an average value of $153,000 each = $127,000,000.
3.  Estimated total value of existing property at $209 Million taxed at 17 mils, equals an
       average annual revenue loss of $3,553,000.
4.  Phase Two, consisting of four hundred and ten (410) not yet built 1400 sf units with 
       two car garages valued at $200,000 each = $82,000,000.  Future tax value = $1,394,000,
       increasing the Municipal annual revenue loss to an estimated total of $4,947,000.

One of the arguments Rubini made was that the project would not float without the tax break and that the tax breaks were for the benefit of the troops. Prior to Rubini’s gift rental units on Elmendorf were rented to the troops at rent rates substantially below the local market. When the existing properties were given to Rubini for a nominal fee, the government gave away the benefit of receiving a comparatively nominal rent, and the rent for the troops was raised by Rubini to match competitive market rents. Rubini then started receiving a cash inflow at the expense of the troops: one that I suspect amounts to somewhere in the neighborhood of $18 million per year. No wonder some people love ‘Uncle Ted’ so much.

I believe that the above information demonstrates how less than honorable people rise to the top. Convinced that no one will question their actions when the appearance of fraud is shared with large numbers of the powerful, persons with only a little bit of larceny in their blood find themselves willing to do their small part, or simply look the other way, in exchange for money or power. Swept up into a culture of corruption, they share an unfairly acquired leg-up on their competition; and as a group, they come to dominate the political process. 

I believe the above demonstrates a willingness of local, state and federal officials to work together in a conspiracy to defraud the federal government of millions of dollars if they believe a portion the booty will directly or indirectly eventually find its way into their pockets. I believe the above lays out information sufficient to warrant an investigation as to whether or not crimes were committed with the direct participation or complicity of dozens of people. Whether guilty of a crime or not, I find it implausible to believe that anyone named in this article is unaware of the role they’ve played in perpetuating a culture where bribery is an accepted way of business. Whether guilty of a crime or not, their indifference to what I suspect anyone involved very likely knew or suspected is deplorable.

In speculation, what did they want and what did they get? What kind of appraiser might be willing to represent a property to be zoned business when it was not? Could it be one who was a little bit crooked and knew how lucrative it might be to have Jon Rubini’s future business?

When Tim Potter of Dowl Engineers summarized for the Assembly that the National Archives had acquired the property as R-3, with the anticipation that it might be rezoned to B-3, could he possibly not have suspected that there may have been a little bit of fraud going on in the midst of the deal he was helping to consummate? 

Tim Potter’s client no longer even owned the property. Could he really have believed that the decision makers at the National Archives wanted the property to be rezoned in a manner that could only cost more money? Even if those at the Archives had said they wanted the property re-zoned B-3, wouldn’t it be obvious to any casual observer that any buyer in the position of the Archives would only make such a statement under duress? Wouldn’t it be obvious to any casual observer that the only reason those at National Archives might have issued such a letter could only have been in response to pressure from above? Pressure brought from above because someone down below refused to do their part without a little additional something to cover their ass?

And what about the Assembly members who voted for it? Both they, and the planning commission members who serve at the pleasure of the mayor, did so with the full knowledge that the only reason they were being asked to do so was to justify the fact that Jon Rubini had already succeeded in getting the government to pay him nearly three times as much as his residentially zoned property was worth at the time he closed the sale. At the very least, this knowledge alone should have been the equivalent of a red flag on the field to everyone in the room; an omen to the smell of fraud in the air. Mark Begich is a real estate professional who knows full well that if the federal government had already closed on Rubini’s property, some rules were probably broken and some fraud probably occurred. At the very least he should have called a timeout and checked. 

According to KTUU Wednesday August 1, 2007 newscast, John Rubini used an age old time tested mechanism for quelling the opposition to his requested rezone. He bribed them. Mayor Mark Begich told KTUU that he removed his opposition and issued a letter in support of Rubini's requested to rezone his property after Rubini had won the support of the trustees in charge of the neighboring park land.

 

And just how did Rubini win the support of his surrounding land owners? He promised them 20% of the $ 2.025 million he expected to be able to fleece the federal government for if he could just get his rezone. He explained that supporting his rezone would enable a higher appraisal to present to the federal government and that the he would pay them $440,000 of the $2.2 million in profits the government would pay him if they would just stop opposing his rezone. 

 

Begich, says the higher price your government had to pay Rubini because of the rezone he helped Rubini get and described the bribe Rubini paid his neighbors to get their cooperation as a "Win-Win" for everybody. I think were in real trouble if paying off your neighbor becomes a standard for people seeking permission for a change of use for their property. 

· Click below to see news clip: http://www.ktuu.com/global/video/popup/pop_player.asp?LaunchPageAdTag=Homepage&ClipID1=1634376&h1=Begich%20played%20role%20in%20archive%20land%20buy&vt1=v&at1=News&d1=191133&activePane=playlist&playerVersion=8&hostPageUrl=http%3A//www.ktuu.com/&rnd=1204563

· Note: In all cases of the above mentioned properties which are partially owned by Ted Stevens’ brother-in-law and attorney Bill Bittner, Bill owns 6%. Alaska law allows attorneys to act in the capacity of a real estate broker once a year. Six percent is a common amount charged by real estate brokers. I therefore suspect it possible that Bill Bittner was “cut in to the deal without investment,” under the false pretense that he had provided Jon Rubini with a brokerage service.

?/?/2004
Sometime in 2004, Ted Stevens made a change that hid many of his assets. He sold some or all of his interests in Jon Rubini’s properties and along with other assets and proceeds from the sale of assets, placed most of his wealth in a blind trust. The scanty disclosure requirements of the U.S. Senate lead us to believe his trust is worth between $1 million and $5 million.

07/26/2005
Mayor Begich pushed a new ordinance through the Municipal Assembly (OA. NO. 2005-91) waving Rubini’s obligation to comply with twelve of Anchorage’s laws in Title 21, the portion of Anchorage’s Municipal Code that sets out the planning and zoning requirements that all competing developers now are, and will be in the future, required to comply with.

· Note: I believe the above referenced ordinances exempting Rubini from regulation violate Alaska’s constitutional prohibition barring the passage of laws designed just for the benefit of one person. I also believe that of the tax exemption Ben Stevens (Ted’s son) pushed through the Alaska Legislature, exempting Rubini and his partners Leonard Hyde and Bill Bittner from Municipal Property Tax. 

Reminder: “Bill Bittner is Ted Stevens’ Brother-in-Law.”

· As I have done many times in the past, in the public’s interest I would bring suit in Alaska’s Courts to overturn the passage of such unconstitutional laws, but former Governor Murkowski, with the help of former Senator Ben Stevens, pushed legislation through Alaska’s Legislature that changed the laws on what is known as “Public Litigation.” Prior to the change in the law, “Public Litigants” were protected from being shackled with the State’s attorneys’ fees and the attorney fees incurred by Public Litigants for having brought such suits would be paid by the State if “The litigant had gone to the trouble of enforcing Alaska’s constitution without anticipation of financial reward for having done so.”

· Although I won in the arena of Alaska’s public opinion, I lost to Ben Stevens and the State of Alaska in Alaska’s Courts. Had it not been for the intervention of the FBI, I might have lost the whole war and Ben might still be in power. In either case, intervening on the public’s behalf to protect them from those who would eviscerate their Constitution has become a far more risky business than it used to be. Following Ben Stevens’ victory in the State Courts, a victory that still stands, Ben attempted to use his new law to collect $56,000 from me for trying to recall him from office. Had it not been for a technicality in my favor, he could have collected.

· The new law on Public Litigation, as well as several other laws Ben Stevens and Frank Murkowski pushed through, was pushed through at the behest of those who were bribing Ben. As it becomes increasingly clear that the Murkowski Administration and his Department of Law (including APOC – the Alaska Public Offices Commission) were doing everything in their power to assist Ben Stevens in concealing his fraud, including pushing for the passage of such laws, the need for reviewing and repealing laws pushed through by Ben Stevens becomes increasingly obvious.

January 21, 2006
ADN ARTICLE: [image: image1.png]


City officials and four developers have signed an agreement for construction of a new, $103 million Convention Center in downtown Anchorage, and a bond sale to finance the project is set for next week. About $70.5 million of the total will go toward building the 215,000 square-foot center, a marginal $1.1 million increase from an estimate presented to the Anchorage Assembly last month. The developers — Jonathan Rubini, Leonard Hyde, Mark Pfeffer and Gerald Neeser — have agreed to contribute up to $2 million each if overruns exceed more than $6 million in contingency funds set aside for extra costs, Sinz said. If money is left after completion, up to $2.5 million extra could go to the group, he said. Note: As near as I am able to tell, the developers had initally proposed a development concept in 2004, about the same time Mayor Begich began pushing ordinances through the Municipal Assembly waving the “would be developers” obligation to comply with provisions of Title 7 and title 21.

April 7, 2007

Anchorage developers Marc Pfeffer and contractor Jerry Neeser, (developers who are also partners of John Rubini who is in partnerships with Mark Begich and Ted Stevens) announced that they bought two downtown building lots and planned to pave them, put in 75 parking spaces and temporarily rent them to the city of Anchorage for $29,000 per month. (A lease amount that this commercial real estate broker, me Ray Metcalfe the author of this timeline, instantly recognized as about 10 times any realistic lease value for the property.) The eventually completed parking lot held 67 parking spots, is rented by the hour and has, since the city began paying $29,000 per month to the business partner of the Mayor’s business partner, experienced about a 15% occupancy. Not including management and lease payment costs that must also be factored in deducted, the lot is costing the city about $25,000 more per month than it generates.  An appraisal demonstrating the actual lease monthly lease value to be approximately $3,639 per month is available on request. In prospective, the city retails covered parking spots to individuals in the parking garadge next door, above the bus barn, for $60 per month. The city wasmaking a quanity purchase of 67 uncovered parking spaces, purchased whosale at $432 per space, for the pourpouse of retailing them to the public at a substantial loss. When public pressure forced  MayorBegich  to renegotiate the leasse with this buddy Mark Pfeffer, he rewrote the lease to may Mark Peffer $308 per space for 47 spaces rather than $432 per space for 67 spaces. He called good and said it was fixed. Go figure?
Early in 2007, John Rubini secured right to subdivide 3.83 acres off of an 8 acre parcel owned by the U.S. Postal Service. The property is the wooded section on the corner of 36th and A Street, setting between the post office and 36th. That post office sets immediately to the west of the Anchorage Loussac Library and Assembly Chambers. It has a public notice sign posted to alert people of the upcoming hearings regarding its subdivision. The file number for additional hearing information is S-11596. The contact person’s name in planning is Francis McGloflin @ 343-8003. The property is about two hundred yards from the property John Rubini just sold to the federal government for approximately $10 per square foot. (I’ll bet he is paying a lot less for this.) To contact the land sales office of the U.S. Postal Service, call 303-220-6547. (I think the person’s name to talk to is Edgwood.) I called and ask some questions like “Where was this advertised?” and “how much did he agree to pay?” The person I spoke with promised to get back to me with some answers, but that was months ago and he never did. Dowell Engineering is handling Rubini’s application for a subdivision.

By Ray Metcalfe ‑ 07/01/2007
Email: RayinAK@aol.com   Tel: 907-344-4514

 (See following page for contacts)Others who may be able to shed light on the above issues:
1. Larry Norene real estate broker and former chair of the BOE;
Office = 907-272-1227 Cell = 907-229-1737.

2. Anchorage Assemblywoman Sheila Selkregg, former director of the Planning Commission. It would be appropriate to ask her why the planning commission opposed the first rezone request and changed its opinion after Rubini purchased the property. Home = 907-337-8478.

3. Jerry Weaver has run the Anchorage Planning Department working directly under each mayor’s appointed planning director for 30 years, 907-343-8161.

4. Grace Pleasants, the agent who had the property listed for the former owner for ten years. Now living out of state, her # is 253-572-3219 or 907-229-5418. Ask her about what she learned from the GAO office located in the city where she now lives. Seems there was a bit of arm twisting to buy the 8 acres at any price.

5. Tim Spernak, the agent for Samantha Delay Wilson, who sold the property to Rubini for the construction of the Parks Building.
Tel. = 907-786-7312 or 907-229-6228.

6. Senator Tom Wagoner.  Home = 907-283-4930 Cell = 907-398-4200.

7. Curt Olson, one of the retired teachers involved with the 40th street investors, now living in Homer Alaska. 907-235-5107

8. The Government Services Administration in Tacoma Washington, the office that handled the government’s acquisition of Rubini’s property. (Roomer has it that they were told to buy it at any price.) 

Note: The initial purpose of this document was to provide interested law enforcement and or investigating reporters with a starting point for conducting their own investigative research. This fact is demonstrated by the story that appeared in the nationally known Washington DC publication Roll Call. After gleaning pointers from the pointers herein, Roll Call did their own research, resulting in their own story, without mention of the above timeline.   

Circulation at the hand of its author was generally confined to persons fitting the above descriptions and persons who had expressed an interest in assisting with the addition of things of they have knowledge and believe to be in need of investigation. It was not widely circulated until after persons mentioned above obtained copies from persons other than its primary author and sent hints of litigation followed by public statements about its content. Content that theretofore had not been widely published, or posted on the web. If you know of needed corrections, please advise.

This document became a document of much wider public interest when persons named herein challenged its content on the Anchorage Daily News’s political blog and contributors to that blog began asking to see the content to which they referred. Seeing the growing public interest, I elected to subtitle it “An argument in support of the “Clean Elections Initiative”

# # # #
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